
 

 

MEMORANDUM 

To: President and Board of Trustees 
 
CC:  Board of Trustees 
 
From: John A. Lobaito, Village Administrator   
 
Date:   March 20, 2023 
 
Subj:    FYE 2024 Proposed Budget and 5-Year Capital Improvement Plan 
 
Attachments:   1. FYE 2024 Proposed General Fund Budget 
   2. Capital Projects Fund Summary 
   3. 5-Year Capital Improvement Plan 
   4. Motor Fuel Tax Fund     
 
 
Enclosed is the proposed FYE 2024 balanced budget and 5-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). The 
proposed General Fund (operating budget) includes budgeted expenditures of $1,315,603 with expected 
revenues of $1,612,923.  The budget is forecasted to end the fiscal year with a surplus of $297,321. 
Including the proposed Capital expenditures of $985,950 the total proposed budget is $2,301,553.  
 
Revenue: Expected revenue is estimated to be down compared to FYE 2023 by $266,980.  The single 
largest decrease is from funds received from the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA).  The final payment 
was received in FYE 2023 of $227,034.  No ARPA funds will be received in FYE 2024.   
 
Motor Fuel Tax (MFT) revenues are expected to be down compared to FYE 2023 by an estimated 
$36,000.  The single largest decrease is the elimination of proceeds from Rebuild Illinois program of 
$33,000.   
 
Our conservative revenue estimates are reflective of the growing concern about inflation in the coming 
year and a weak economy.  
 
Expenditures:  The proposed General Fund budget of $1,315,603 is less than FYE 2023 budget by 
$41,726. The decrease is mostly attributable to a reduction in the police services contract.   Below are a 
few highlights:  

1. Salaries and Benefits are flat. 
2. Police Services costs are down.  
3. Increase in Forester budget for additional Tree Removal.  
4. Parks – increase in event programing budget. 
5. ZBA – increase due to planned update to the Village Zoning Ordinance. 
6. Increase in Public Works maintenance activity.  New initiative for a programmatic approach to 

annual maintenance of Village storm water management systems.   



 

2 
 

 
Funds Transfer:  The FYE 2024 proposed operating budget estimates a year end surplus of $297,321.  It 
is recommended that the surplus be transferred from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund 
(CPF) at the end of the fiscal year. The CPF was established by the Village Board in May 2021 by passing 
Ordinance No. 2021-07.  The creation of the CPF is helpful in communicating long range plans to the 
community and provides a better management tool in planning for the Village’s capital improvement 
needs in the short and long term.  
 
Salaries & Benefits:  Budgeted salaries compared to FYE 2023 budget is up 2% or approximately $5,000.  
The proposed budget is reflective of changes that occurred in 2022.  The Administrative Assistant #1 is 
budgeted, but it is anticipated the position will remain unfilled for most of FYE 2024. The second 
administrative position is new this year as Sue Murdy has moved from a part-time position to a more 
full-time position and has assumed more responsibilities since the resignation of a previous employee in 
2021.  The part-time position remains and is currently filled.  
 
5-Year Capital Improvement Plan:  This is the third year of the Village’s CIP. The proposed CIP is a 
dynamic planning and management tool for the Village Board to coordinate the timing and financing of 
capital improvements. The plan provides a blueprint for improving/maintaining the community’s 
infrastructure and facilities.  
 
The CIP is divided into four (4) categories: Public Infrastructure, Facilities, IT Systems, and Street 
Program.  
 
Criteria:  Inclusion of items into the CIP are based on public safety, value to the community, cost, and 
availability of funds.  
 
Sources of Revenue: The CIP funding comes from general revenues of the Village, grant funds, MFT and 
unrestricted reserves.  In addition to these revenue sources, the Village also received funds over the 
past two fiscal years from the American Rescue Plan Act of approximately $400,000 and the Rebuild 
Illinois program of approximately $200,000.  The Rebuild Illinois funds are restricted to street 
improvements.  These are one-time revenues and therefore are being transferred to the Capital Projects 
Fund for one-time expenditures.   
 
This year’s operating budget was developed with a conservative expectation on revenue and a realistic 
view of expenditures.  If the economy weakens in the coming year, adjustments to the Village 
expenditures will occur to match adjusted revenues.  The Capital Improvement Plan reflects a focus on 
improving the public infrastructure in the immediate future, and a long-term view on improving the 
Village’s open space and park facilities.  The aim is to improve the community environment that will 
continue to make North Barrington an attractive place to live.  
 
 
 




















































